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INTRODUCTION

This case is about the Defendants’ deliberate a¢fisscomply with Section 526 of the
Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007 (“E)SA2 U.S.C. § 17142, which provides:

No Federal agency shall enter into a contract focygrement of an alternative or

synthetic fuel, including a fuel produced from noneentional petroleum

sources, for any mobility-related uses, other tf@mnresearch or testing, unless

the contract specifies that the lifecycle greenbogass emissions associated with

the production and combustion the fuel suppliedeurtde contract must, on an

ongoing basis, be less than or equal to such emssirom the equivalent

conventional fuel produced from conventional petwoh sources.
Reducing greenhouse gas emissions of the fedevalgment is an important purpose of EISA,
because these emissions contribute directly toatBnchange. As the U.S. Supreme Court has
concluded, “[tlhe harms associated with climate ngjea are serious and well recognized.”
Massachusetts v. ERB49 U.S. 497, 521 (2007).

Nonetheless, Defendant U.S. Defense Logistics Agdfitergy (‘“DLA Energy”) has
violated Section 526 by entering into contractsbehalf of the U.S. Defense Logistics Agency
and the U.S. Department of Defense (collectivelgféhdants”) to procure fuel produced from
Canadian oil sands (also called “tar sands”) remavecrude, which is a nonconventional
petroleum source, and which has lifecycle greenb@as emissions that are greater than those
from the equivalent fuel produced from conventiopelroleum sources. Defendants admit that
they have not inserted this specification into aowtracts for fuels derived from Canadian oil
sands recovered crude (“COSRC”) since the passbf#sé. SeeAmended Complaint (Doc.
56) 11 56-57; Defendants’ Amended Answer (Doc.JA[L$6-57.

In addition, DLA Energy has published and reliesmjis “Interim Implementation Plan
Regarding Section 526 of [the EISA]” (“ImplementatiPlan”) to implement its policy of non-

compliance with Section 526, which violated the APAU.S.C. 8§ 553(b), as a rule enacted

without any prior public notice and opportunity fmymment. Finally, Defendants have not even



Case 1:11-cv-00041-CMH -TRJ Document 76 Filed 02/17/11 Page 5 of 31

attempted to comply with the requirements of théidwal Environmental Policy Act (“NEPA”)
regarding the contracts or the Implementation Rlemsmuch as they prepared no Environmental
Assessments or Environmental Impact Statementake & hard look at the environmental
impact of these actions.

Plaintiffs’ Motion for Summary Judgment seeks aldmatory judgment that Defendants
have violated the APA and NEPA. Ultimately, Pldfsatseek permanent injunctive relief to
force Defendants to comply with Section 526, theAABnd NEPA with regard to the COSRC
contracts and the rule implementing Section 526rd@hare no issues of material fact to be
decided in this administrative record review cas®l Plaintiffs demonstrate herein that they are

entitled to summary judgment as a matter of law.

STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED MATERIAL FACTS

FUEL DERIVED FROM CANADIAN OIL SANDS RECOVERED CRUD E

IS AN ALTERNATIVE OR SYTHENTIC FUEL PRODUCED FROM A

NONCONVENTIONAL PETROLEUM SOURCE.

1. Most of the oil refined by refineries in the Unit&dates is imported from other
countries, with Canada being the top supplier &.Wil imports, exceeding imports from Saudi
Arabial The U.S. imported nearly 2 million barrels pey @#%/d”) of crude oil from Canada in
2006, out of total imports of approximately 10 fioifl b/d?

2. Around half (1 million b/d) of the Canadian oil ilmqped to the U.S. in 2006 was

from the world’s largest nonconventional petrolesource, the oil sands of western Canada.

Canadian oil imports have grown since 2006, andatheunt of Canadian oil sands recovered

! Exhibit (“Ex.”) 1, attached. LMI Government Consng. EISA Section 526: Impacts on DESC
Supply (March 2009) (“LMI Report”). AR at 43. Exqas from the Administrative Record filed
by Defendants on January 6, 2011, are attachddsdfemorandum as Exhibits. Citations to the
pages of the Exhibits and the Administrative Reoeill be “AR at " which refers to the
page number stamped on bottom of the page(s) Adhanistrative Record.

2 Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 43, 62.
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crude (“COSRC”) is expected to grow substantialgrothe next decade.By 2020, Canadian
oil sands production is projected to be nearlyghmmes what it is today. If most of this oil were
shipped to the U.S., as it is today, and this ayurdintinues to consume about 20 million barrels
per day, CORSC oil would represent about 15 percitutal U.S. supply.

3. COSRC is transported from the principal producimgaa by pipeline; several
pipelines move this oil to refineries throughou thnited States, and many more are plarined.

4, Section 526 applies to federal agency contractprfecurement of “an alternative
or synthetic fuel, including a fuel produced froengonventional petroleum sources.” 42 U.S.C.
§ 17142. Defendants state in their Implemental#tam that COSRC “might be considered ‘an
alternative or synthetic fuel, including a fuel gugced from nonconventional petroleum sources’
under Section 526°” Defendants’ Implementation Plan categorized fdeisved from COSRC
as “petroleum products” and evaluated them undeti®@e526 as “alternative fuels,” because
COSRC is a “nonconventional petroleum source.”

5. COSRC is a “nonconventional petroleum source” beeaf the manner in which
it is extracted and processed. The main deposi@aafadian oil sands are located in Athabasca,
Peace River, and Cold Lake in the Province of Aloen 2007 approximately 55 percent of oll
sands were extracted by open pit strip mining, mcW truck-and-shovel operations pull away
the overburden and dig up the sands. Once thessared mined, the solid product, called
bitumen, is separated from the other materialsdayrg hot water and caustic soda to the sand,

then pumping the resulting slurry to an extracitemt where it is agitated and the oil skimmed

j Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 43, 51.
Id.
® Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 52.
® Ex. 2, attached. “Interim Implementation Plan Regay Section 526 of the Energy
Independence and Security Act of 2007” (“Implem&ataPlan”). AR at 4.
" Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 11-12.
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from the top. The remaining 45 percent of COSRG wegovered througim situ methods in
2007, which involve injecting steam or another seuof heat into the oil sands formation in
order to free the bituméh.

6. Oil sands bitumen must be upgraded before it campiped to refineries for
processing into finished products. Upgrading is eddoy some combination of thermal
conversion, or coking, distillation, catalytic carsion, and hydrotreating, each of which is an
energy intensive process. “The end product ish@ti@crude oil, which is shipped by pipeline
to refineries across North America to be refinedher into jet fuels, gasoline, and other
petroleum products” [emphasis add&d}efining of COSRC also requires additional steps b
refineries as compared with conventional crudedik to the unusually viscous consistency of

the COSRC?

. DEFENDANTS HAVE CONTRACTED FOR PROCUREMENT OF FUELS
FOR MOBILITY USES THAT ARE PRODUCED FROM CANADIAN O IL
SANDS RECOVERED CRUDE.

7. The DOD is by far the largest federal governmemnag purchaser of fuels, and
the DLA Energy (formerly known as U.S. Defense gyeSupport Center (“DESC")) is the
principal purchaser of these fuels for the D&DN 2008 DLA Energy purchased 5.7 billion
gallons of fuels worldwidé®> U.S. suppliers of fuels to DLA Energy are domestfining
companies, which are located throughout the cowardyinclude a number of smaller companies

as well as some very large ones. In any given yearbulk of DLA Energy’'s purchases are

made from about 20 refiners, some of which own ipleltrefineries and supply DLA Energy

8 Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 46-49.

° Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 48.

19Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 42-43.

1 Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 40.

12 Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 5.
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from more than one. Others own a single refinbuy,it may be strategically located near one or
more military installations and hence provide a &eyrce of supply’

8. Mobility related fuels purchased through contralgys Defendants in the U.S.
contain significant quantities of fuels derivedfracCOSRC. Defendants have estimated that
COSRC imported into the U.S. in 2006 was about 6%.8. refinery capacity, with the fraction
varying from less than 4% to as much as 40%, depgnoin the region, because pipelines
transport COSRC to refineries in some regions,nmitothers:* When Defendants looked at
specific refineries with DLA Energy bulk fuel puise contracts in 2006, the refineries were
estimated to have potential COSRC fractions of Q7% of their output, depending on whether
they were known to be processing COSRC or hadahahility to process COSRE.

9. Several of the refineries identified as likely pgesing COSRC have contracts to
supply mobility related fuels to Defendants. Thaesdude, but are not limited to: BP-Husky in
Lima, Ohio; BP in Whiting, Indiana; BP West in Fdate, Washington; ChevTex in Salt Lake
City, Utah; Conoco-Phillips in Ponca City, Oklahgm@onocoPhillips in Oklahoma City,
Oklahoma; ExxonMobil in Baton Rouge, Louisiana; Brkobil in Baton Rouge, Louisiana;
Gary Williams in Wynnewood, Oklahoma; Hunt in Tuscsa, Alabama; Shell in Deer Park,
Texas; Shell in Martinez, California; Sinclair inn8lair, Wyoming; Tesoro in Aiea, Hawaii;
United Refining in Warren, Pennsylvania; U.S. Réfining in Tacoma, Washington; Valero in

Benicia, California; Valero in Corpus Christi, Texaand Valero in Texas City, TX. The

13

Id.
1“Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 78-79.
15Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 81-82.
1°Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 74-75.
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contracts with these refineries, listed in the Adwsh Complaint at f 55, are included in the
administrative record and attached as Exhibits 8721

10.  Furthermore, Defendants have included in the adinative record certain
military specifications for mobility related fuelscluding aviation fuels and naval distilldfe.
Both of the military specifications for aviationefis require that “[t]he feedstock from which the
fuel is refined shall be crude oils derived fromtrpleum, tar sandsoil shale, or mixtures
thereof” [emphasis addedf].Most of the contracts included in the administatiecord are for
the procurement of aviation fuels that are requicetheet these specificatioffs.

11. Therefore, based on the information in the adnmaiste record, it is indisputable
that Defendants are contracting for mobility rediataiternative or synthetic fuels that are

produced from COSRC, a nonconventional petroleumcso

[1. DEFENDANTS’ CONTRACTS AND CONTRACT SOLICITATIONS DO
NOT CONTAIN THE SPECIFICATION REQUIRED BY SECTION 5 26
OF EISA.
12. Defendants admitted in their Amended Answer thatenof the contracts that
DLA Energy has entered since the enactment of @e&26 for fuels for mobility-related uses

that include fuels derived from COSRC have incluttezlspecification required by Section 526

of EISA that “the lifecycle greenhouse gas emissi@ssociated with the production and

7 The contracts referenced in the Amended Complaiet attached as Exhibits 3-21 and
included in the record at AR at Tabs 26, 51, 12284,37, 16, 21, 20, 38-39, 40-42, 18, 23, 28,
47-48, 35, 43, 33, 46, 123.

18 Exhibit 22, attached. Detail Specification Turbifeiel, Aviation, Kerosene Type, JP-8
(NATO F-34), NATO F-35, and JP-8+100 (NATO F-37)RAat 10216-10235; Exhibit 23,
attached. Detail Specification Turbine Fuel, Awati Grades JP-4 and JP-5. AR at 10247-
10263; Detail Specification Fuel, Naval DistillafeR at 10236-10246.

19 Ex. 22. Detail Specification Turbine Fuel, Aviatiokerosene Type. AR at 10221; Ex. 23.
Detail Specification Turbine Fuel, Aviation, Grad#%-4 and JP-5. AR at 10251.

% See AR at Tabs 12-14, 16-30, 32-35, 36-48, 51;122 See also Exhibits 5, 6, 8, 9, 10, 11,
12, 13, 14, 15, 18, 20 and 21, which are contnaftsenced in the Amended Complaint that are
required to meet these specifications.
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combustion of the fuel supplied under the contraast, on an ongoing basis, be less than or
equal to such emissions from the equivalent comweak fuel produced from conventional
petroleum sources.” See Plaintiffs’ Complaint [D&6, { 57], Defendants’ Amended Answer
[Doc. 61, 1 57]. In facthone of Defendants’ contracts with refineries thafendants believe
are likely processing COSRC contain the specificatequired by Section 526d. #*

13. Defendants’ omission of this language is signiftcéiecause there is no issue that
“[pletroleum products derived from oil sands cragte estimated to have lifecycle [greenhouse]
emissions exceeding those from conventional Bilifecycle greenhouse gas emissions for a
fuel are those that are emitted during the exwacbf the feedstock through the processing,
distribution, and delivery and combustion of theished fuef®* CORSC involves greater
lifecycle greenhouse gas emissions than conventmhbecause of the additional energy used
in its mining, transportation, processing, andniefi**

14. In addition, the Court should note that Defenddrdse included in the record
thousands of pages of contract solicitations fobititg related fuels. These include 17 domestic
(U.S.) solicitations and 48 solicitations for fuetsbe delivered to far-flung locations around the

globe, such as the United Kingdom, Kenya, Camerd¢smagel, Bulgaria, Greece, Egypt, Italy,

1 Seecontracts. AR at Tabs 12-52, 122-123. In additDhA Energy admitted in response to
Plaintiff SACE’s request for documents under thed@iom of Information Act that it had no
documents responsive to the request for “Any ahda@itracts for the procurement of bulk
petroleum which specify that the lifecycle greerd®mugas emissions associated with the
production and combustion of the fuel supplied urie contracts are, on an ongoing basis, less
than or equal to such emissions from the equivdlezitproduced from conventional petroleum
sources.” Ex. 24. AR at 211, 216.

2L Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 1-25.

22 Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 30.

23 One section of EISA defines the term “lifecyclegnhouse gas emissions” as “the aggregate
guantity of greenhouse gas emissions...from feedstmeration or extraction through the
distribution and delivery and use of the finisheélfto the ultimate consumer...” 42 U.S.C. §
7545(0)(1)(H).

24 Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 42-43.
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and Afghanistan. Plaintiffs are unclear why Defartdancluded these solicitations in the record,
but it is telling that not one of them contains theguage required by Section 526 or any

reference to the lifecycle greenhouse gas emissibtie fuels.

V. THE DLA ENERGY IMPLEMENTATION PLAN ATTEMPTS TO
EXCLUDE FUELS DERIVED FROM CANADIAN OIL SANDS FROM
SECTION 526.

15. In August 2009 DLA Energy published the so-callddtérim Implementation

Plan Regarding Section 526 of the Energy Indepereland Security Act of 2007 as its plan

“to implement Section 526°° It identifies actions necessary to determine wévetkl of the

mobility related fuels DLA Energy purchases meet tequirements of Section 526 and which

contracts will be affected. Among other thingsg tmplementation Plan concludes, without
analysis, that “so long as DLA Energy does notatny specify oil sands as the source of crude
and so long as the fuels are commercially availaihlen these products should be considered

outside the purview of Section 528.”

16. The Plan further attempted to justify, without aagalysis, excluding from

Section 526 contracts for fuels containing any amaf COSRC fuels, stating “because it is

almost impossible to purchase fuel which contaiosOanadian oil sands as its crude source,

attempting to exclude oil sands crude from purchaserefined products would increase costs

and compromise readiness by eliminating neededtsswf supply

% Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 1-25.

26 Ex. 25. Action Memo, A.S. Thompson, Director, DLAGcompanying Implementation Plan
(Feb. 25, 2010). AR at 121.

2" Ex. 2. Implementation Plan, AR at 12.

28 Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 12-13.
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17. It is not impossible for Defendants to purchasd Wigich contains no Canadian
oil sands as its crude source. For instance, Diefgs have procured fuels from refineries that
they know do not utilize COSRE.

18.  This Implementation Plan has been applied broaulpefendants’ contracts for
procurement of fuels containing COSRC derived fubkscause none of these contracts has

included the specification required by Section 526.

ARGUMENT

SUMMARY JUDGMENT IS APPROPRIATE IN THIS APA RECORD
REVIEW CASE.

Summary judgment is proper when the pleadings asdodery show there is “no
genuine issue as to any material fact and thamtbving party is entitled to judgment as a matter
of law.” Fed.R.Civ.P. 56(c). Summary judgment &rtigularly appropriate in challenges to
federal agency actions under the APA, becausedbescare based on an administrative record
and no fact finding by the Court is requirétkee e.g. Northwest Motorcycle Ass’n v. United
States Dep't of Agric 18 F.3d 1468, 1471-72 (9th Cir.1990c¢cidental Engineering Co. v.
I.N.S, 753 F.2d 766, 769-770 (9th Cir. 1985).

The APA states that the Court “shall” “set asidgjeacy actions that are “arbitrary,
capricious, an abuse of discretion, or otherwis¢ imo accordance with law.” 5 U.S.C.

§706(2)(A)° The court “must consider whether the decision b&@sed on a consideration of

29Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 74-75.

% plaintiffs have standing to bring these APA andPMEclaims because of the impacts of
climate change on their members and due to theeduwal violations of Defendants’ failure to
comply with the APA and NEPASee, e.g., Massachusetts v. E.P549 U.S. 497, 521-23
(2007); South Carolina Wildlife Federation v. Limehousd9 F.3d 324, 330 (4Cir. 2008);
Natural Res. Defense Council, Inc. v. Watk®ts4 F.2d 974, 980 n. 7 (4th Cir.199R)ney Run
Pres. Ass’'n v. County Comm’rs of Carroll CounB68 F.3d 255, 263-64 (4th Cir. 2001);
Friends of the Earth, Inc. v. Gaston Copper ReagclCorp, 204 F.3d 149, 161 (4th Cir. 2000)

9
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the relevant factors and whether there has bedeaa error of judgment.Citizens to Preserve
Overton Park, Inc. v. Volpel01 U.S. 402, 416 (19719yverruled on other grounds by Califano
v. Sanders430 U.S. 99 (1977). An agency action is arbytiand capricious “if the agency has
relied on factors which Congress has not intentled consider, entirely failed to consider an
important aspect of the problem, offered an exglandor its decision that runs counter to the
evidence before the agency, or is so implausikdé ithcould not be ascribed to a difference in
view or the product of agency expertis®ldtor Vehicle Mfrs. Ass’n of U.S. v. State Farm Mut
Auto. Ins. Cq.463 U.S. 29, 43 (19833ee alsdDhio River Valley Environmental Coalition, Inc.
v. Kempthorne473 F.3d 94, 102 {4Cir. 2006).
. DEFENDANTS’ CONTRACTS FOR PURCHASE OF FUELS DERIVED
FROM CANADIAN OIL SANDS RECOVERED CRUDE VIOLATE

SECTION 526 OF THE EISA AND THE APA.

A. Section 526 of the EISA Clearly Applies to DefendarContracts for Fuels Derived
From Canadian Oil Sands Recovered Crude.

The Energy Independence and Security Act of 20Q74)4&.C. 88 1700%et seq, which
became law on December 19, 2007, was establishgddwee the United States toward greater
energy independence and security, to increasertitigtion of clean, renewable fuels, to protect
consumers, to increase the efficiency of produmigdings, and vehicles, to promote research on
and deploy greenhouse gas capture and storagengpéind to improve the energy performance
of the Federal Government, and for other purpode®amble, Pub. L. 110-140 (Dec. 19, 2007).
The EISA as enacted included provisions of the ldook Representatives bill, the “Carbon

Neutral Government Act,” which had the overall pasp “[tjo reduce the Federal Government’s

(en bang. Plaintiffs have attached declarations to thsmddrandum from Sierra Club members
concerning the impacts of climate change to supgtariding. Exhibits 26 and 27, attached. If
Defendants challenge Plaintiffs’ standing in theisponse or by separate motion, Plaintiffs will
respond with additional declarations, if necessary.

10
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contribution to global warming through measurest theomote efficiency in the Federal
Government's management and operations...” H. B5281¢' Cong. (2007f* One such
provision from the Carbon Neutral Government Actluded in EISA was Section 526, 42
U.S.C. §17142.
Again, Section 526 of the EISA states as follows:
No Federal agency shall enter into a contract focgrement of an alternative or
synthetic fuel, including a fuel produced from noneentional petroleum
sources, for any mobility-related uses, other tf@nresearch or testing, unless
the contract specifies that the lifecycle greenkoges emissions associated with
the production and combustion the fuel suppliedeartle contract must, on an
ongoing basis, be less than or equal to such emssirom the equivalent
conventional fuel produced from conventional petwoh sources.
Although EISA does not contain definitions of soofehe terms in Section 526, the terms are
either clear on their face or have been definedther related statutes, providing a basis for
interpreting the technical terms in Section 526ari materiawith these statute$. The term
“mobility-related uses” has common meaning andlearcto Defendants that it would apply to
“most liquid fuels purchase by the Federal goveminier ground, aviation, and marine usés.”

The term “synthetic fuel” has previously been defirby Congress to include fuel derived from

tar sands as part of an extension to the Defense@uBtion Act of 1953 Defendants’ own

31 One of the findings in the Carbon Neutral Governméct bill was that “[ijmproved
management of Government operations, including iatguns and procurement..., can
maximize the use of existing energy efficiency aadewable energy technologies to reduce
global warming pollution, while saving taxpayersoney, reducing our dependence on oil,
enhancing national security, cleaning the air, protecting pristine places from drilling and
mining.”

%2 The canon of statutory interpretation pari materiaprovides that similar statutes are to be
interpreted in light of, and consistently with, omeother Wachovia Bank v. Schmid@&88 F.3d
414, 422 (4 Cir. 2004).

33 Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 6.

% The “Energy Security Act” was passed by Congres4980 to promote the production of
synthetic fuels in the U.S., which included an agten of the Defense Production Act of 1950.
Pub. Law 96-294 (June 30, 1980). Section 308(kthefAct, previously codified at 50 U.S.C.
App. 8§ 2098, defined the term “synthetic fuel” fitve Defense Production Act as “any solid,

11
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report called COSRC “synthetic crude off.” The term “nonconventional petroleum sources”
has also been previously defined by Congress iniritexnal Revenue Code to include “oil
produced from shale and tar sands.” 26 U.S.C. §(@%K(A). However, it is unlikely that
Congress intended the term “alternative fuels” iplg to fuels derived from COSRC, because
the definition of that term in other statutes doesinclude fuels from tar sands crufe.

The plain language of Section 526, with refereréhe definitions of technical terms
previously passed by Congress, makes it clearftieds derived from COSRC are covered by
Section 526 as synthetic fuels and/or fuels proddoem nonconventional petroleum sources.
Yet, in refusing to comply with Section 526 for ¢@cts for fuels containing COSRC derived
fuels, in their Implementation Plan Defendantsrafieto portray this provision as unclear or
ambiguous, principally because it does not cordafinitions>’

Defendants have also taken the position in thaplémentation Plan that Section 526
does not apply to contracts for bulk fuels thattaon COSRC derived fuels, arguing that the

“contracts do not target any specific source ofderwil nor do they specify that the refined

liquid, or gas, or combination thereof, which canused as a substitute for petroleum or natural
gas (or any derivatives thereof, including chemifs#dstocks) and which is produced by
chemical or physical transformation (other than Wimg, coking, or desulfurizing) of domestic
sources of...(iii) tar sands, ...” This provision wamitied in the general amendment of this Title
by Pub.L. 111-67, § 7, Sept. 30, 2009.

% Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 47, 48.

% 42 U.S.C. § 6374(g)(2), pertaining to Alternatiftesl use by light duty Federal vehicles,
defines the term “alternative fuel” as “methanandtured ethanol, and other alcohols; mixtures
containing 85 percent or more (or such other péacgn but not less than 70 percent, as
determined by the Secretary, by rule, to provideréguirements relating to cold start, safety, or
vehicle functions) by volume of methanol, denatugdthnol, and other alcohols with gasoline or
other fuels; natural gas; liquefied petroleum dmsirogen; coal-derived liquid fuels; fuels (other
than alcohol) derived from biological materialsgeaticity (including electricity from solar
energy); and any other fuel the Secretary detemsniog rule, is substantially not petroleum and
would yield substantial energy security benefitd anbstantial environmental benefits.”

37 Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 6.
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products must be produced from oil sands crud&®%ilThis misinterpretation of Section 526
fails for three reasons. First, Defendants’ poaitis factually inaccurate, because Defendants’
military specifications for aviation fuels procurbég many of the contracts require that “[t]he

feedstock from which the fuel is refined shall lpede oils derived from petroleum, tar sanoié

shale, or mixtures thereof’ [emphasis add@d[Therefore, by contracting for aviation fuels in
accordance with these specifications, Defendanlibedately and specifically included fuels
derived from tar sands in all of these contracts.

Second, Defendants’ interpretation of the phrasatfact for” would read language into
Section 526 that is not there and contradict tlénpineaning of the phrase. A contract is “for”
whatever it procures. If Defendants know or suspleey are procuring fuels derived from
COSRC, as they must in contracting for fuel frorfineries they have identified as processing
CORSC, Defendants cannot avoid Section 526 by ifeggignorance of the contents of the fuel.

Third, Defendants’ interpretation would produce #iesurd result that federal agencies
could avoid complying with Section 526 by simplylicg the fuels “bulk fuels” or some other
general term in their contracts while all the whileowing that they contain fuels derived from
COSRC, thereby increasing greenhouse gas emissisnsompared to conventional fuels.
Legislative enactments “should never be construe@éstablishing statutory schemes that are
illogical, unjust, or capricious,” which is an agescription of Defendants’ interpretation of
Section 526. In re Motley, 150 B.R. 16, 18 (Bkrtcy. E.D. Va. 1992juoting Bechtel
Construction, Inc. v. United Brotherhood of Carpastand Joiners of Americ812 F.2d 1220,

1225 (9" Cir. 1987)):see also United States v. Presté89 F.Supp. 294, 297 (W.D. Va. 1990).

3 Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 4.
39 Ex. 22. Detail Specification Turbine Fuel, Aviatjiokerosene Type. AR at 10221; Ex. 23.
Detail Specification Turbine Fuel, Aviation, Gradi#%-4 and JP-5. AR at 10251.
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Defendants have also attempted to reak aninimisexception into Section 526, which
does not exist, by claiming that the “amount o @ands crude mixed with conventional crude
oil is not substantial® This claim is factually inaccurate, because Deé#ens have estimated
that the refineries from which Defendants purchasdbility-related fuels process as much as
27% COSRC! Even if there is a level of COSRC fuels in buliels procured by Defendants
that could be considerade minimisfrom an increased greenhouse gas emissions peavapect
nothing in the administrative record establishestvwthat level should be or that any particular
contracts would fall underde minimidevel.

Finally, the application of Section 526 to Defeniarcontracts for blends of COSRC
fuels with conventional fuels is consistent witle thtated legislative purposes of the EISA and
the Carbon Neutral Government Act from which SettE26 originated. The reduction of
lifecycle greenhouse gases resulting from Fedevaémment procurement would be frustrated
if Defendants can ignore one of the major sourckexeessive greenhouse gases — the
procurement of millions of gallons per year of CASé&erived fuels.

B. Even if “Leqislative History” is Considered, It Sumrts the Application of Section 526 to
Defendants’ Contracts.

Because the language of Section 526 is clear Wétaid of definitions contained in other
statutes passed by Congress, there is no needdd te a review of legislative history in order
to determine the applicability of Section 526 to SR derived fuels. See, e.g. Etape v.
Chertoff, 497 F. 3d 379, 391 {4Cir. 2007). If the Court decides to go beyond stetutory
language, it will find that there is no true legisve history that reflects the intent of Congress
during the consideration of EISA Section 526 regayduels derived from COSRC, except for

some general debate about the increased relianoe Q@nadian tar sands oil increasing

1.
“LEx. 1. LMI Report. AR at 81-82.
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greenhouse gas emissidAs Defendants have relied upon a post-enactmert l&tim one of
the sponsors of Section 526 in the House of Reptatees as “subsequent legislative history”
to support their interpretation of Section 526 heit Implementation Plan and are expected to
rely upon this letter in their response to PlafstiMotion for Summary Judgmefit. However,

as Justice Scalia has stated, “[s]Jubsequent l&gislaistory — which presumably means the post-
enactment history of a statute’s consideration andctment — is a contradiction in terms.”
Sullivan v. Finkelstein496 U.S. 617, 632 (1990) (concurring opinio8ee alsoCobell v.
Norton 428 F.3d 1070, 1075 (D.C. Cir. 2005) (“[p]ost-etmaent legislative history is not only
oxymoronic but inherently entitled to little weightRehabilitation Association of Virginia, Inc.
v. Kozlowski,42 F.3d 1444, 1457 Y4Cir. 1994) (noting the “pitfalls of relying on pos
enactment legislative history”).

In the instant case, Defendants would not be rglyin the enactment of subsequent
legislation to support their interpretation of Sewt526, which can sometimes provide useful
guidance in statutory interpretation, but simply subsequent statements by one member of
Congress. Justice Scalia further state®utlivan v. Finkelsteirthat “the views of a legislator
concerning a statute already enacted are entidletbtmore weight than the views of a judge
concerning a statute not yet passe8lillivan, supraat 632;see alsoConsumer Prod. Safety

Comm’n v. GTE Sylvania, Inc447 U.S. 102, 117 (1980) fest-hocstatement in a conference

“2 As a matter of background knowledge, during arfldebate on the day that H.R. 6 was
introduced, which became the House version of El@# House of Representatives member,
Rep. Roscoe Bartlett of Maryland, stated:
Now, if your concern is foreign oil, then you couddso get some additional
energy from such things as tar sands and oil slaaddscoal. But if your concern
is global warming, this will be a very bad placeget energy to invest in the
alternatives that we will ultimately have to traisi to because it take a lot of
energy to get energy out of tar sands, and thagne fossil fuel energy and that
releases CO2 into the atmosphere.
Cong. Rec. H752 (Jan. 18, 2007).
“3Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 19.
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report for subsequent legislation is not entitieény weight)Oscar Mayer & Co. v. Evang41l
U.S. 750, 758 (1979) (after-the-fact “legislativbservations ... are in no sense part of the
legislative history” because “[i]t is the intent thfe Congress that enacted [the section] ... that
controls”). This Court should reject the Congreasis letter as any indication of the scope of
Section 526 as applied to COSRC derived fuels.

The only subsequent legislative history of Sect@6 that can provide guidance for the
interpretation of Section 526 is the 2008 amendnterthe EISA that exempted the National
Aeronautics and Space Administration (“NASA”) frasampliance with Section 526 for certain
fuel purchase®® 42 U.S.C. § 17827 states as follows:

Section 17142(a) [Section 526 of the EISA] of thike does not prohibit NASA

from entering into a contract to purchase a geheaaiailable fuel that is not an

alternative or synthetic fuel or predominantly proeld from a nonconventional

petroleum source, if —

(1) the contract does not specifically require t@ntractor to provide an

alternative or synthetic fuel or fuel from a noneentional petroleum source;

(2) the purpose of the contract is not to obtairal@rnative or synthetic fuel or

fuel from a nonconventional petroleum source; and

(3) the contract does not provide incentives fogfanery upgrade or expansion to

allow a refinery to use or increase its use of ftrelm a nonconventional

petroleum source.

Obviously, Congress considered it necessary toteama@mendment to the EISA to provide
NASA with the same exceptions to Section 526 thefeDdants would have this Court read into
the plain language of the Section for DOD. Congi@sarly knows how to create exceptions to

Section 526, but, in fact, declined to do so forM©fuel purchases. At the same time the

NASA amendment was being considered, some memlief®mgress were pushing a similar

4 «A statute should be construed to be consisterth wibsequent statutory amendments.”
United States v. Dauray 15 F.3d 257, 263 (2nd Cir. 200@jting Bowen v. Yuckerd82 U.S.
137, 149-151 (1987)).
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exemption for DOD, but no such exemption was emkdigther supporting the application of
Section 526 to Defendants’ contratts.

C. Defendants’ Contracts are in Violation of the APBecause They Are Arbitrary,
Capricious, an Abuse of Discretion, or Otherwisd ioAccordance with Law.

Defendants’ specific contracts for purchase of iitgbrelated fuels containing fuels
derived from COSRC do not contain the specificatiequired by Section 526 of the EISA.
Therefore, these contracts do not comply with $acki26 and are arbitrary and capricious, an
abuse of discretion, or otherwise not in accordamitie law, in violation of the APA, 5 U.S.C. §
706(2)(A).

This Court can review these contracts, hold thefawiinl and set them aside, pursuant to
the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706, because they are “finanay actions* Plaintiffs’ challenge to the
DLA Energy contracts is a challenge to particulad aiscrete agency actions, not to a whole
broad programSee, e.gl.ujan v. National Wildlife Federatiomt97 U.S. 871, 890 (1990). The
contracts fit the conditions for final agency antim Bennett v. Spea520 U.S. 154 (1997Y.
Defendants’ contracts are “the consummation ofagpency’s decisionmaking process,” and thus
would satisfy the first element of tiRennetttest. Second, there is no doubt that the comtract

determine rights or obligations, and are actioomfwhich “legal consequences will flow.”

> Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 15.

¢ The APA does not define “final agency action,” blefines “agency action” as “the whole or

part of an agency rule, order, license, sanctiehefr or the equivalent or denial thereof, or
failure to act.” 5 U.S.C.S. § 551(13). “Agencyiant made reviewable by statute and final
agency action for which there is no other adequateedy in a court are subject to judicial

review”. 5 U.S.C. § 704.

*” The United States Supreme Court stated: “As a rgémeatter, two conditions must be

satisfied for agency action to be ‘final’: Firshet action must mark the consummation of the
agency’s decision-making process — it must notfte merely tentative or interlocutory nature.

And second, the action must be one by which ‘right®bligations have been determined,” or
from which ‘legal consequences will flowd. at 177-178.
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The contracts in the instant case are similar ¢opttoject-specific insurance, loans, and
loan guarantees provided by the Overseas Privagstment Corporation which the Court found
to be final agency action for APA review kriends of the Earth v. WatspB005 WL 2035596
(N.D. Cal. 2005) (copy attached). In addition)esist one court has held that DOD contracts
constitute final agency actionState of Alabama v. United States Army Corps ofrteays 382
F. Supp. 2d 1301 (N.D. Ala. 2005). The Court theset that the Corps’ action of entering into
contracts for water supply storage was final agexatipn, stating that:

Because entering into the contracts was a dis@et®n that marked the

consummation of the agency's decision-making pmceand because

the...contracts determined rights and obligations lzami legal consequences, the

Corps’ entry into those contracts constituted alfagency decision.

Similarly, Defendants’ contracts for procuremenfu#ls in this case mark the consummation of
the agency’s decision-making process, and furthmrldvdetermine final rights and obligations
and have legal consequences.

In addition to the individual contracts listed imaiatiffs’ First Amended Complaint,
Plaintiffs’ challenge the failure of Defendantsajoply Section 526 to amgontracts for purchase
of mobility related fuels. As the Northern Distriaf California pointed out irFriends of the
Earth, such a challenge to a defined group of actionsldvoot convert Plaintiffs’ challenge into
a broad programmatic attack prohibited NMgtional Wildlife Federationbecause the Supreme
Court held that “it would be appropriate to chafjera ‘universe’ of particular orders under the
APA.” Id. at *5 (citing National Wildlife Federation497 at 890)see also Cobell v. Babbis0

F.Supp.2d 24, 34 (D.D.C. 1998) (application of axyyeaccounting system constituted final

agency action).
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1. DEFENDANTS’ INTERIM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN VIOLATES TH E
APA.

A. The Implementation Plan is a Substantive Rule WMdas Not Adopted in Accordance
with the Rulemaking Provisions of the APA.

Defendants’ Implementation Plan developed and delipon in order to implement
Section 526 is a substantive rule which should HBeen adopted with the notice and comment
rulemaking procedures of the APA. Defendants faitedomply with these procedures, and, as
a result, the Implementation Plan is invalid. 5 @.S8 553(b) and (c). Furthermore,
Defendants’ failure to comply with these proceduses arbitrary and capricious, an abuse of
discretion, or otherwise not in accordance with,laantrary to 5 U.S.C. 8 706(2)(A).

The APA defines a rule, in pertinent part, as ‘Weole or part of an agency statement
of general or particular applicability and futurdeet designed to implement, interpret, or
prescribe law or policy . . .” 5 U.S.C. § 551(4Under the APA, a federal administrative
agency is required to follow prescribed notice andhment procedures before promulgating
and relying upon substantive ruf¥s5 U.S.C. § 553see also Tabb Lakes, Ltd. v. United States
of America, 715 F.Supp. 726, 728 (E.D. Va. 1988). These reduprocedures include
publication of the proposed rule in thederal Registeand an opportunity for public comments.
Id. Failure of an agency to utilize the notice and ownt rulemaking procedures of the APA
renders a substantive rule void, and any actioertaknder the rule has no legal effect and
must be set aside as agency action taken withoss#reance of procedure required by law.

Tabb Lakes, suprat 729.

8 Under the APA, there are exceptions to the nadiceé comment rulemaking procedures set
forth in 5 U.S.C. § 553 for “interpretative rulegneral statements of policy, or rules of agency
organization, procedure, or practice.” 5 U.S.G58(b)(A). This exception is a “narrow one”
and should be “only reluctantly countenanceBdtterton v. Marshall648 F.2d 694, 703 (D.C.
Cir. 1980). This exception is inapplicable to tlese at hand because the Plan is a substantive
rule.
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In the instant matter, Defendants’ ImplementatidanPis a “rule” as defined by 5
U.S.C. § 551(4), because, by its terms, it is ideghto implement Section 526 for all of
Defendants’ fuel contractS. Moreover, the Plan is a substantive rule. Suist@ rules are
ones which “grant rights, impose obligations, oodarce other significant effects on public
interests, or which effect a change in existing tawpolicy.” Tabb Lakes, suprat 728. Stated
differently, a substantive rule “has the force ak] and creates new law or imposes new rights
and or duties.” Jerri’'s Ceramic Arts, Inc. v. Consumer Prodcut $af€ommission874 F.2d
205, 207 (4 Cir. 1989). As discussed above, the Plan creatémmediate change in existing
law, i.e., Section 526, by concluding that contracts for fuedsitaining fuels derived from
COSRC are not covered by Section 526 and formaefendants’ policy of noncompliance
with Section 526.

Because the Implementation Plan implements Se&#f) effects a change in existing
law, and in fact creates new law, it constitutesilastantive rule and should have been subjected
to the notice and comment procedures of the APArpa promulgation. However, as admitted
by Defendants, the Implementation Plan was notiglud in theFederal Registerand there
was not any opportunity for public comments. [D&1, § 68]. Therefore, Defendants’
promulgation of and reliance on the Implementatiian is invalid for failure to comply with
the rulemaking procedures of 8 5 U.S.C. § 553(ld) @), and Defendants’ failure to comply
with these procedures was arbitrary and capriciansabuse of discretion, or otherwise not in

accordance with law contrary to 5 U.S.C. § 706(2)(A

49 Ex. 25. Action Memo, A.S. Thompson, Director, DLA&ccompanying Implementation Plan
(Feb. 25, 2010). AR at 121.

20



Case 1:11-cv-00041-CMH -TRJ Document 76 Filed 02/17/11 Page 24 of 31

B. The Implementation Plan is an Invalid Because dl&ties Section 526.

Pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 706(2), the reviewing caamn also invalidate agency rules
that are “(C) in excess of statutory jurisdicti@uthority, or limitations, or short of statutory
right.” As discussedupra,the Implementation Plan has, in effect, createdtlaa is in direct
contravention of the plain language of Section %68} has resulted and will result in violations
of Section 526 by Defendants. Therefore, Deferddaptiblication of and reliance on the
Implementation Plan is in excess of statutory piaBon, authority, or limitations, or short of

statutory right in violation of Section 526 and SUC. § 706(2)C.

V. DEFENDANTS VIOLATED NEPA BY FAILING TO EVALUATE THE
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS OF THEIR CONTRACTS AND THE
IMPLEMENTATION PLAN.

The administrative record contains absolutely nodewe that Defendants have
attempted to comply with NEPA, 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2),conducting an\NEPA analysis of
their contracts in an Environmental Assessment (JEA Finding of No Significant Impact
(“FONSI”), or an Environmental Impact Statement ISB. Furthermore, Defendants have
violated NEPA, 42 U.S.C. 8§ 4332(2), and the APAJ.5.C. § 706(2)(A), by their publication of
and reliance on the Implementation Plan withoutdcmting any NEPA analysis, including not
preparing an EA or FONSI, and/or not evaluatingithpacts of the Implementation Plan in an
EIS. Defendants’ failure to comply with NEPA arnd implementing regulations also violates
the APA, 5 U.S.C. § 706(1), as agency unlawfullyhweld or unreasonably delayed.

NEPA is “the basic national charter for protectiof the environment,” 40 C.F.R. 8§
1500.1(a), and declares a national policy of ptotgand promoting environmental qualitgee

42 U.S.C. 88 4321, 4331(agee alsoHughes River Watershed Conservancy v. Glickrgan,

F.3d 437, 443 (A Cir. 1996). It is intended “to promote efforts which will prent or eliminate
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damage to the environment and biosphere and stientii® health and welfare of man.” 42
U.S.C. 8 4321. To that end, NEPA is designed tosifee all federal agencies to the
environment in order to foster precious naturabuese preservation Andrus v. Sierra Club,
442 U.S. 347, 350-351 (1979 odges v. Abrahan800 F.3d 432, 438 {4Cir. 2002).

NEPA’s purpose is “to help public officials make cdgons that are based on
understanding of environmental consequences, &edatztions that protect, restore, and enhance
the environment.” 40 C.F.R. § 1500.1(c). To efiate this purpose, NEPA requires that all
federal agencies prepare a “detailed statem®régarding all “major federal actions
significantly affecting the quality of the humanvennment.” 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C).
Ultimately, NEPA “ensures that important effectdlwbt be overlooked or underestimated only
to be discovered after resources have been condhutt¢he die otherwise castRobertson v.
Methow Valley Citizens Councd90 U.S. 332, 349 (1989), and a reviewing courttnrensure
that an agency took a “hard look” at the environtakoconsequences of its decisioh. Kleppe
v. Sierra Club427 U.S. 390, 410, n. 21 (1976ughes River Watershed Conservancy, sara
443.

A. Defendants’ Contracts For Fuels Containing Cana@drSands Recovered Crude and

the Implementation Plan Constitute Major Federatidhs Significantly Affecting the
Quality of the Human Environment.

Defendants’ contracts for mobility related fuelsitaoning COSRC fuels, as well as the
Implementation Plan, are “major federal action[gh#icantly affecting the quality of the human

environment,” pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(@lajor Federal action “includes actions with

*0 This statement, known as an Environmental Impé&ateshent (“EIS”), must describe, among

other items, the “environmental impact of the pgub action,” any “adverse environmental

effects which cannot be avoided should the propbsamplemented,” and “alternatives to the

proposed action.” 42 U.S.C. § 4332(2)(C).

>! This “hard look” includes consideration of all éseeable direct and indirect impacts, as well
as the cumulative impacts of a single project togetwith all past, present, and reasonably
foreseeable future actions. 40 C.F.R. 1508.7.
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effects that _maybe major and which are potentially subject to Faderontrol and
responsibility...” 40 C.F.R. § 1508.18 (emphasisleat). Federal actions covered by NEPA
include “[a]Jdoption of programs, such as a grougafcerted actions to implement a specific

policy or plan;_systematic and connected agencysaes allocating agency resources to

implement a specific statutory program or executivective” [emphasis added]. 40 C.F.R. §

1508.18(b)(3).

Defendant DLA Energy’s mission is to provide DefandDOD and other government
agencies with comprehensive energy solutions, duwetucontracting for fuels on behalf of the
federal governmen® Courts have found government contracts to constitoiajor federal
action.” See, e.g., Port of Astoria v. Hod8B5 F.2d 467, 477 {9Cir. 1979) (power supply
contract);Forelaws on Board v. Johnsoi43 F.2d 677, 681 (dCir. 1984) (electrical supply
contracts);Environmental Defense Fuel v. Andr&96 F.2d 848,852 (b Cir. 1979) (water
supply contracts.) This contracting, which inclsidtae contracts for mobility related fuels
containing COSRC, plainly constitutes “systematicl a&onnected agency decisions” which
allocate agency resources to implement any numbestatutory programs and/or executive
directions. Moreover, these contracts for mobitalated fuels containing COSRC have major
effects, including, but not limited to, the facatisuch fuels have higher lifecycle greenhouse gas
emissions compared to conventional petroleum ahds,t exacerbate global warmityg.
Therefore, Defendants’ contracts for mobility rethfuels containing COSRC constitute major

Federal action?

°2 Ex. 2. Implementation Plan. AR at 4.

> Ex. 1. LMI Report. AR at 30.

>4 Notably, DLA’s NEPA Regulations provide that amt&ronmental review may be required
for...Federal contracts.” DLAR No. 1000.22, at Encl 1
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Furthermore, pertaining to Defendants’ promulgatiof and reliance on the
Implementation Plan, 40 C.F.R. 8 1508.18 provigdepertinent part:
(a) Actions include...new or revised agenajes, regulationsplans, policiesor procedures....
(emphasis added). As discusseghra,the Implementation Plan is a substantive rulas #iso a
“plan” and statement of Defendant’s “policy.” Theflendants’ promulgation of and reliance on
the Implementation Plan has had and will contirmubave major effects, as the Implementation
Plan’s conclusions have allowed Defendants to naetito contract for mobility related fuels
derived from COSRC, and in so doing exacerbateaglatarming. Therefore, like Defendants’
contracts for mobility related fuels containing GRS the Implementation Plan constitutes
major federal action subject to NEPA.
B. Defendants Arbitrarily and Capriciously Failed takKé the Requisite Hard Look at the

Environmental Impacts of These Contracts as Welltssr Publication of and Reliance
on the Implementation Plan.

Despite the fact that Defendants’ contracts, asl asel their Implementation Plan,
constitute major Federal actions, the record is thatter is completely devoid of alNEPA
analysis whatsoever, much less the requisite “hao#t,” at the environmental impacts of
the contracts or the Implementation Plan. Deferslaavve apparently concluded that NEPA
does not apply to these contracts or the Implentientd®lan, as the record contains no EA
prepared in order to determine whether these odstrar the Implementation Plan, would have

significant environmental impacis.

*> DLA’s NEPA regulations provide that “policies, tdgtions, and procedures (e.g. regulations,
manuals, instructions, mission changes)” are “[Tijage of actions subject to environmental

review. DLAR No. 1000.22, at Encl. 1.

¢ To determine “significance” (and thus whether d8 Ehust be prepared), the agency must
consider: (1) ecologically critical area impact®) ¢umulative impacts, (3) endangered species
impacts, (4) uncertain impacts, and (5) controagrnisnpacts. 40 C.F.R. § 1508.27. To help
determine whether this significance threshold i$, e agency may prepare an Environmental
Assessment (“EA”). Based on the EA, a federal agegither decides to prepare an EIS or
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This Court should to ensure that Defendants todkaad look” at the environmental
consequences of their decision to enter into cotgréor mobility related fuels derived from
COSRC, as well as their decision to promulgate aslg on the Implementation Plan.
Defendants’ failure to conduct this requisite aseyin relation to these contracts and the
Implementation Plan is a violation of NEPA, 42 \CS§ 4332(2), as well as the APA, 5 U.S.C.

8§ 706(1) and 706(A)(2).

CONCLUSION

The United States Supreme Court has stated thae“ftarms associated with climate
change are serious and well recognizeblassachusetts v. ERA49 U.S. 497, 521 (2007), and
Congress endeavored to reduce the Federal Govetrsnoemtribution to climate change by
including Section 526 when it enacted the EISA 002 42 U.S.C. § 17142. Section 526
clearly applies to Defendants’ contracts for mépifuels derived from COSRC and contains no
de minimisor bulk fuels exception for Defendants.

Nevertheless, since the passage of the EISA of ,2D@#endants have, by their own
admission, refused to comply with Section 526 ef FHSA by continuing to enter into contracts
for fuels for mobility-related uses derived from SRC, without including the specification
required by Section 526. While Defendants haveiedgthat Section 526 does not apply to
contracts for bulk fuels that contain COSRC-derivadls, this argument is wholly without
merit, not only because it violates basic canndrstatutory construction, but further because the
majority of the contracts in the administrative ot are based on military specifications that

require that fuels produced should be derived from tadsasr a mixture thereof. As a result,

makes a finding of no significant impact (“FONSI'$eed40 C.F.R. 88 1501.4, 1508.9(a)(1).
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these contracts are in direct contravention topllaen language of Section 526, and this Court
should hold them unlawful and set them aside.

Additionally, Defendants have violated the APA hymulgating and relying upon the
Implementation Plan without compliance with the atory notice and comment rulemaking
procedures set forth in 5 U.S.C. 8§ 553. Therefthis, Court should find the Implementation
Plan void, and set aside any action taken underrdifee as agency action taken without
observance of procedures required by law.

Finally, Defendants have violated NEPA by failimgtake the requisite “hard look” at the
environmental impacts of the contracts at issuevels as the Implementation Plan. Although
Defendants’ contracts, as well as the Implememd®ian, are major federal actions significantly
affecting the quality of the human environment, énefants have failed to conduct any NEPA
analysis whatsoever in regards to the environmentgbacts of the contracts or the
Implementation Plan

Therefore, Plaintiffs respectfully request that @eurt enter summary judgment for

Plaintiffs on their claims that Defendants havdated the APA and NEPA.

Respectfully submitted, this $@ay of February, 2011.

/sl
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

| hereby certify that, on February 17, 2011, a copthe foregoing Plaintiffs’ Motion for
Summary Judgment was filed electronically. | ustierd that notice of this filing will be sent to
the following filing users:

Lauren A. Wetzler

United States Attorney Office
2100 Jamieson Ave
Alexandria, VA 22314
lauren.wetzler@usdoj.gov
Attorney for Defendants

Timothy K. Webster

Sidley Austin LLP

1501 K Street, NW

Washington, DC 20005
twebster@sidley.com

Attorney for Intervenor-Defendants

| also certify that, on February 17, 2011, a cabythe foregoing was mailed to the
following non-filing users via US mail, postage ghai
Steven Gillingham
1100 L St. NW
Washington, DC 20036

Attorney for Defendants

/sl
David S. Bailey
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